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1.0 INTRODUCTION 

1. TDB Restructuring Limited (the “Receiver”), in its capacity as receiver over the real 

property known municipally as 311 Conacher Drive, Kingston Ontario (the 

“Kingston Property”) and 2849, 2851, 2853, 2855 and 2857 Islington Avenue, 

Toronto, Ontario (the “Toronto Property”), filed its Third Report to the Court 

dated November 25, 2024 (the “Third Report”) in connection with a motion by the 

Receiver seeking, inter alia, an order approving the sale of the Toronto Property. 

2. The Receiver filed its supplement to the Third Report to the Court dated November 

28, 2024 (the “Supplement to the Third Report”). 

3. The Receiver filed its confidential second supplement to the Third Report to the 

Court dated December 3, 2024 (the “Confidential Second Supplement to the 

Third Report”).  

1.1 Purpose of Report 

4. The purpose of this third supplement to the Third Report (the “Third Supplement 

to the Third Report”), is to:  

(a) provide the Court with the Receiver’s comments and observations and 

information in relation to:  

i. materials filed with the Court from various parties and specifically: 

1. the affidavit of Jamie Erlick sworn December 3, 2024 (the 

“Erlick Affidavit”); 

2. the affidavit of Simion Kronenfeld sworn December 3, 2024 

(the “Kronenfeld Affidavit”; and 

3. an email from Mr. Dale Denis dated December 5, 2024 in 

which he indicates that the Kronenfeld Affidavit will be 

revised to reflect the additional costs to renovate the houses 

based on an individual’s attendance at the Toronto Property 

(the “Kronenfeld Email”).   
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4. an email exchange between counsel for the Receiver and Mr. 

Dale Dennis regarding the attendance at the Toronto Property 

by an individual on December 5, 2024, who conducted an 

inspection as referenced in Mr. Dale Denis’ email of December 

5, 2024 (the “Inspection Email Exchange”); 

ii. a further offer received by the Receiver on December 6, 2024. 

(b) seek an Order of the Court approving the Third Supplement to the Third 

Report and the Receiver’s conduct and activities described therein. 

5. The Third Supplement to the Third Report should be read in conjunction with the 

Third Report and the Supplement to the Third Report, including the Terms of 

Reference set out therein. 

6. Unless otherwise defined, the defined terms in the Third Supplement to the Third 

Report have the same definitions as set out in the Third Report and the Supplement 

to the Third Report. 

2.0 THE PROPERTY WAS MARKETED APPROPRIATELY 

7. Mr. Erlick appears to suggest that the Toronto Property ought to have been marketed 

as five separate lots rather than as a whole.   

8. At the outset of the sales process, the Receiver, in consultation with its agent Colliers, 

considered the highest and best use for the Toronto Property and in reliance on 

Colliers’ expertise, determined that an ‘en bloc’ sale was most appropriate. The 

Receiver (and Colliers) maintain that this was the best way to market the Toronto 

Property. 

9. In support of Mr. Erlick’s bald contention otherwise, at paragraphs 10 – 17 of the 

Erlick Affidavit, a copy of which is attached hereto as Appendix “A”, Mr. Erlick 

states, among other things, that: 

(a) a minimal amount of work would be needed to make each of the 5 houses 

comprising the Toronto Property liveable; 
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(b) the Properties were marketed exclusively as a bulk sale, despite their 

apparent suitability for individual sale in the strong Toronto residential 

market and that the Properties might have been sold for undervalue; 

(c) by grouping the Properties into a single sale, the Receiver limited the pool of 

prospective buyers to investors and developers; 

(d) in Mr. Erlick’s opinion, individually, he believes the floor price for each 

individual unit to be at least $800,000, or a total of $4,000,000; 

(e) based on Mr. Erlick’s analysis of market conditions, the Properties’ 

characteristics, and recent comparable sales data, selling the units 

individually would have: (1) maximized exposure to the more competitive 

individual market, (2) attracted end-user buyers willing to pay premiums for 

ready-to-occupy homes (with minimal work required to make the Properties 

liveable), and (3) would demonstrate the aggregate minimum sale price of all 

the properties combined; and 

(f) with respect to efforts to target developers, in Mr. Erlick’s view an exposure 

time of four weeks to relist the Properties for sale is not sufficient. 

10. Mr. Erlick’s statement that a minimal amount of work would be required to make 

each of the 5 houses liveable is completely erroneous given that the dwellings are 

dilapidated and totally uninhabitable.   Attached hereto as Appendix “B” are 

photographs of the condition of the interior of the 5 houses which make clear that a 

significant amount of work will be required simply to make the houses habitable (let 

alone desirable for a sale). The condition of the dwellings, and the cost to make them 

habitable, is discussed in greater detail below. 

11. Upon reviewing the Erlick Affidavit, the Receiver contacted Colliers with a request 

for it to comment on the market conditions, target market and other comments made 

by Mr. Erlick to which a real estate expert’s views would be most valuable.  Colliers 

provided the Receiver with a report (the “Colliers Report”), a copy of which is 

attached hereto as Appendix “C”, which sets out, among other things, that: 
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(a) Colliers confirmed its initial recommendation to the Receiver (as set out in 

its listing proposal) that the Property be sold ‘en bloc’ as, in Colliers’ view, the 

highest and best use for the Property was as a combined development site. 

Colliers also has serious doubts that the individual lots would sell for 

$800,000 per lot; 

(b) Colliers determined at the time of the initial listing that fully-renovated semi-

detached homes in the immediate area had sold recently between 

approximately $980,000 and $1,050,000. That said, the transactions 

Colliers identified were not on Islington Avenue which is a busy street; 

accordingly, the comparable properties were superior to the Toronto 

Property. Colliers also reviewed older detached houses, as well as partially-

renovated and renovated detached houses that sold in the immediate area 

(off Islington Avenue) and they all sold between $950,000 and $1,325,000. 

Finally, new and ‘0–5’ year old custom built semi-detached and detached 

homes in the area sold for between $1,545,000 and $1,840,000; 

(c) given the end sale prices of renovated homes in the area (i.e. between 

$950,000 - $1,325,000 for more desirable locations off Islington Avenue, 

with the high end being achievable for detached homes), it is unlikely that a 

builder would incur the risk of acquiring the individual lots for $800,000 per 

lot when considering all of the hard and soft costs and other contingencies 

and risks inherent in undertaking a substantial renovation; and 

(d) in Colliers’ view, a total demolition of the homes, as an alternative to 

renovation, would be even more costly and less attractive to a potential buyer. 

A builder would need to build large homes (of between 2,500 and 3,500 

square feet), with finished basements, in order to sell for between $1,545,000 

and $1,840,000. The cost of this construction alone would be approximately 

$600,000 - $750,000 (based on the lowest end of the cost range per square 

foot provided by Altus’ 2024 Canadian Cost Guide) plus soft costs. 

Accounting for an appropriate risk-adjusted profit margin, a builder would 

have to purchase each lot for significantly less than $800,000 per lot and 

would likely be a riskier, less profitable venture than fully renovating the 

existing homes. 
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12. Finally, as the Court is aware, the duration of the Receiver’s initial sale period was 

10-weeks and its subsequent re-marketing of the Toronto Property was 4-weeks for 

a total of 14 weeks.  Further details of the Receiver and Colliers’ efforts in respect of 

the sale of the Toronto Property can be found in the First Report and the Third 

Report and are not repeated herein.  Mr. Erlick’s comment regarding the 

insufficiency of a 4-week sale period to market the Toronto Property is inaccurate. 

3.0 KRONENFELD AFFIDAVIT AND KRONENFELD EMAIL 

13. A copy of the Kronenfeld Affidavit and Kronenfeld Email are attached hereto as 

Appendix “D” and Appendix “E”, respectively.  The Receiver’s comments and 

observations in respect of same is set out below. 

14. At paragraph 5, Kronenfeld asserts that the Receiver’s motion record and 

supplementary was short served.  This is not accurate. The Receiver’s motion record, 

as confirmed in the Kronenfeld Affidavit, was served on November 25, 2024, which 

is 10 days prior to the date of the December 4, 2024 hearing.     

15. Kronenfeld also complains that he was only advised on November 29, 2024 that the 

Kingston Property did not close. First, this is not relevant to the sale approval motion 

for the Toronto Property. Second, and in any event, the Receiver only found out that 

the purchaser of the Kingston Property could not close on November 27, 2024.  

Immediately after finding this out, the Receiver and its counsel prepared and served 

the Receiver’s Supplement to the Third Report and supplementary motion record on 

November 29, 2024. 

16. Kronenfeld also suggests at paragraph 8 of his affidavit that the marketing of the 

Toronto Property should be paused until the Kingston Property sale closed or was 

otherwise terminated.  This matter was already addressed in the Court’s 

Endorsement dated October 9, 2024 (the “October 9th Endorsement”) at 

paragraph 28, where the Court states “First, as noted, there is no dispute about the 

validity of Cameron Stephens’ charges over the properties, nor that Cameron 

Stephens is the first mortgagee in each case. The Receiver points to authority for the 

proposition that, even if the doctrine of marshalling is applicable, a fundamental 

principle of the doctrine is that “nothing will be done to interfere with the paramount 
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right of the first mortgagee to pursue his remedy against either of the two estates.” 

(807933 Ontario Inc. v. Allison (Trustee of) (1995) 22 O.R. (3d) 102 (Gen. Div.), 

appeal dismissed (1998) 38 O.R. (3d) 337 (C.A.).”  A copy of the October 9th 

Endorsement is attached hereto as Appendix “F”. 

17. Paragraph 9 of the Kronenfeld Affidavit sets out that Mr. Kronenfeld was not 

provided with any notice that the Receiver was evaluating and entertaining offers 

and evaluating same for acceptance.     

18. AJGL could have participated in the Receiver’s sales process at any time by 

contacting the Receiver or Colliers, but chose not to do so until the eve of the 

December 4, 2024 hearing, which is approximately 10-weeks past the Receiver’s 

offer deadline of September 26, 2024 for submission of offers in connection with the 

remarketing of the Toronto Property. 

19. At paragraph 15 of the Kronenfeld Affidavit, Mr. Kronenfeld states his concern that 

the Receiver’s sale to the Toronto Purchaser may very well be improvident.  In the 

Kronenfeld Email, Mr. Denis states that his client estimates the costs to renovate the 

Toronto Property will be $500,000 in aggregate.   

20. To evaluate the state of the buildings at the Toronto Property, the Receiver retained  

Pronto General Contracting (“Pronto”), a general contractor that has been in 

business for over 30 years.  After its detailed inspections of the Toronto Property 

over the course of the time the Toronto Property has been in the Receiver’s 

possession, Pronto has advised the Receiver that in order for the 5 houses comprising 

the Toronto Property to be lived in, they will require: 

(a) new kitchens; 

(b) new bathrooms; 

(c) new plumbing; 

(d) new furnaces; 

(e) new electrical wiring (or possibly try to use/fix the existing wiring); 
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(f) landscaping; and 

(g) certain homes require mould remediation/removal. 

21. In addition, Pronto advised that although it did not test the structural integrity of the 

houses, there may well be structural issues that require attention, which would add 

to the costs.  Pronto’s estimate of the average cost per house to rectify the 

deficiencies, replace equipment and remediate the houses is $250,000 - $275,000 

(excluding softs costs).  Although Colliers, in the Colliers Report, states that it has 

serious doubts that the individual lots would sell for $800,000 per lot for the reasons 

set out therein, even if the “floor price” of the houses was $4,000,000 ($800,000 x 

5), the aggregate costs to renovate the houses, before soft costs and profit, would 

range between $1,250,000 to $1,375,000 with the net proceeds for the entire 

Property ranging between $2,625,000 and $2,750,000 or between $525,000 to 

$550,000 per house. 

4.0 ATTENDANCE TO INSPECT THE TORONTO PROPERTY 

22. The Inspection Email Exchange, a copy of which is attached hereto as Appendix 

“G”, sets out, among other things, that an individual (“Sal”) attended at the Toronto 

Property to conduct an inspection of the 5 houses comprising the Toronto Property 

and followed the direction of an individual who was on site who Sal assumed was a 

representative of the Receiver. 

23. Pronto attended at the Toronto Property on December 5, 2024 at the Receiver’s 

direction to obtain fresh photographs of the interior of the 5 houses comprising the 

Toronto Property.  At the conclusion of Pronto’s attendance, Pronto noticed that a 

truck was parked on the curb on the east side of Islington Avenue just south of Milady 

Rd., adjacent to the Toronto Property. 

24. Pronto re-entered the Toronto Property and saw an individual with a screw gun 

walking around.  Pronto advised the Receiver of the following interaction between 

Pronto and Sal: 

(a) Pronto questioned the individual, who identified himself as Sal, about his 

authorization to be on the Toronto Property.  Sal indicated that he had the 
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Receiver’s authorization to be on the property and when Pronto asked him 

who from the Receiver gave him authorization, Sal indicated that it was 

Simion; 

(b) Pronto attempted to call the Receiver, but could not get a hold of same at the 

time; 

(c) Pronto advised Sal that it did not know who Simion was and that Sal should 

leave on the basis that he did not have the Receiver’s authorization to be on 

the Toronto Property; and 

(d) Sal refused to leave the Toronto Property claiming that he had the Receiver’s 

authorization to be there and continued with his inspection. 

25. Notwithstanding counsel to the Receiver’s email to Mr. Denis asking who is Sal and 

what is his relationship to Mr. Kronenfeld, no response has been received to this 

enquiry.  

26. The Receiver was not advised in advance and had no knowledge of Sal’s attendance 

at the Toronto Property and did not authorize same.  On the basis that the Toronto 

Property is in the possession and control of the Receiver, attending at the Toronto 

Property without the Receiver’s express authorization constitutes trespass. 

27. More significantly, it appears that Mr. Erlick has never even visited the Toronto 

Property notwithstanding his evidence about its condition and cost to repair.  

5.0 FURTHER OFFER RECEIVED 

28. On December 6, 2024, the Receiver received a further offer (the “Further Offer”) 

from a potential purchaser.  A copy of the Further Offer with correspondence from 

counsel to the potential purchaser will be filed with the Court as Confidential 

Appendix 1 to the Third Report. 

29. The salient terms of the Further Offer are set out below, without details of the 

purchase price or deposit paid.   
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(a) the only condition to the offer is that the Receiver obtain an approval and 

vesting order (“AVO”) in favour of the purchaser; 

(b) the purchaser does not require any due diligence or access to any of the 

documentation relating to the Toronto Property; 

(c) closing is to occur 6 business days after obtaining an AVO. 

6.0 CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION 

6.1 Conclusion 

30. While the Receiver recognizes that it is required to attempt to maximize realizations 

for the benefit of creditors, the Receiver continues to have concerns about the 

integrity of the sales process if it were to allow bids made on the eve of the sale 

approval motion (10 weeks after the bid deadline), and thereafter, to be considered 

and/or accepted.  

31. This is particularly true given that in the Receiver’s view, the latest bid (which is now 

the bidder’s third bid since the eve of the sale approval motion) still does not suggest 

to the Receiver that the offer that is before the court for approval is unreasonable or 

improvident. 

6.2 Recommendation 

32. The Receiver’s recommendation remains that the Court should approve and 

authorize the sale of the Toronto Property to the Toronto Purchaser and issue the 

AVO requested by the Receiver in favour of the Toronto Purchaser. 

All of which is respectfully submitted to this Court as of this 7th day of December, 2024. 

TDB RESTRUCTURING LIMITED, solely in its capacity as 
Receiver of 311 Conacher Drive and 2849, 2851, 2853, 2855 and 2857 
Islington Avenue and not in its personal or corporate capacity 

Per:  
Arif Dhanani, CPA, CA, CIRP, LIT 
Managing Director 
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Court File No. CV-23-00701672-00CL

ONTARIO
SUPERIOR COURT OF JUSTICE

(COMMERCIAL LIST)

BETWEEN:

CAMERON STEPHENS MORTGAGE CAPITAL LTD.

Applicant

and

CONACHER KINGSTON HOLDINGS INC. and 5004591 ONTARIO INC.

Respondent

AFFIDAVIT OF JAMIE ERLICK

I, JAMIE ERLICK, of the City of Toronto, MAKE OATH AND SAY:

1. I am a licensed real estate professional, and a broker in association with Harvey Kalles

Real Estate Ltd.

2. I previously swore an affidavit in this proceeding on October 3, 2024 (my “First 

Affidavit”). Capitalized terms described in my First Affidavit shall have the same 

meaning ascribed to them below. 

3. I am a licensed real estate agent registered with the Toronto Regional Real Estate Board 

(TRREB) and have over 20 years of experience specializing in the sale of residential 
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properties and small- to medium-scale development units within Toronto and the Greater 

Toronto Area.

4. My day-to-day functions as a real estate agent include but are not limited to analyzing 

property values, advising on market-appropriate strategies, and maximizing sale 

outcomes by identifying trends in both residential and investment markets.

5. Over my career, I have worked on hundreds of transactions involving both individual 

residential properties and development units, and I have observed first-hand the market 

dynamics that impact their valuation and desirability.

6. My familiarity with the Toronto real estate market, including its current trends, demand 

drivers, and economic conditions, forms the basis of my opinions in this affidavit.

7. As set out in my First Affidavit, I was intimately involved in the planning and 

development of the Properties over several years, so I am very familiar with the 

Properties, the immediate market area and I am very familiar with the houses on the 

Properties.

Current Market Dynamics in Toronto

8. The Toronto market is uniquely bifurcated at this time. The demand for individual homes 

remains robust, fuelled by cuts in interest rates (and expected rate cuts), which have 

lowered borrowing costs and increased affordability for end-user buyers, including 

families and first-time buyers. Homes in the $1 million price range are very much in 

demand now. In contrast, the development sector is experiencing suppressed activity due 

to high costs, economic uncertainty, and investor caution.



- 3 -

9. These conditions have created a situation where individual residential buyers – operating 

in a relatively strong market – are in some cases willing to pay more than developers, 

whose activities are currently constrained. While there are still developers looking for 

properties with a longer term view of the market who will buy and hold, in this market, 

the sale to individual residential buyers should be considered as a minimum sales price 

and viable alternative to a bulk sale targeting only developers.

The Properties and Their Bulk Sale

10. I have viewed the Properties. There is an existing single-family home on each of the five 

parcels of land, and in my opinion, only a minimal amount of work would be needed to 

make each of them liveable.

11. I understand from reviewing the listing information on the Colliers web page (attached 

hereto as Exhibit 1) and from reviewing the materials submitted by the Receiver that the 

Properties were marketed exclusively as a bulk sale, despite their apparent suitability for 

individual sale in the strong Toronto residential market. I have not been provided with 

the sale price of the Properties, but given the market conditions, I have concern that the 

Properties might have been sold for undervalue. 

12. By grouping the Properties into a single sale, the Receiver limited the pool of prospective 

buyers to investors and developers, many of whom I believe are bidding conservatively 

due to the stressed development market.
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13. Individual residential buyers, who could have driven up competitive bidding on each 

unit, were effectively excluded from consideration. This decision disregarded current 

market trends and the strength of the individual home market.

14. Based on recent market data, single-unit homes in comparable areas of Toronto have 

been selling for approximately $800,000. I have attached to his affidavit as Exhibits 2-

copies of recent sales of comparable properties.

15. In my opinion, individually, I believe the floor price for each individual unit to be at least 

$800,000, or a total of $4,000,000.

16. Based on my analysis of market conditions, the Properties’ characteristics, and recent 

comparable sales data, selling the units individually would have: (1) maximized 

exposure to the more competitive individual market, (2) attracted end-user buyers willing

to pay premiums for ready-to-occupy homes (with minimal work required to make the 

Properties liveable), and (3) would demonstrate the aggregate minimum sale price of all 

the properties combined.

17. With respect to efforts to target developers, in my view an exposure time of four weeks 

to relist the Properties for sale is not sufficient.







Learn more about this property online at:

https://www.collierscanada.com/p-can2015029

2849-2857 Islington Avenue Toronto, Ontario M9L 2J9

Approved Mid-Rise Redevelopment Land at Islington Avenue & Finch Avenue West
Land | Land Area: 36,694 SF

Nestled in a prime location at 2849-2857 Islington Avenue, Toronto, this property comprises five adjacent parcels of land
totaling approximately 0.84 acres (36,590 square feet). Currently housing four semi-detached and one detached home, the
Property presents an excellent redevelopment opportunity.  

The Property has been approved and rezoned for a 6-storey, 110-unit mid-rise apartment building, with 74,971 square feet of
buildable Gross Floor Area (GFA). With the City of Toronto’s new Draft Mid-Rise Transition Performance Standards,there is an
opportunity for a purchaser to further rezone the lands for greater height and density.

Conveniently located in close proximity to an abundance of parkland, retail, and other amenities, residents of this future
development will enjoy easy access to nearby parks, retail outlets, restaurants, and recreational facilities. The neighborhood
offers a dynamic lifestyle with everything residents need within reach.

 

To gain access to the online data room please complete the confidentiality agreement below: 

Confidentiality Agreement
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Property Details

Property Types
Land | Residential

Features

• 0.84 acres (36,590 SF) Of Prime Redevelopment Land Across 5 Adjacent Parcels
• Currently the Site of Four Semi-Detached and One Detached Home
• Approved and Rezoned for a 6-Storey, 110-Unit Mid-Rise Apartment Building with a GFA of 74,971 SF
• Potential For a Purchaser to Further Rezone the Lands for Greater Height and Density
• Within Humber Summit Community In Close Proximity To Amenities, Parklands, Major Highways and Schools

Location

Map data ©2024 Google

Steve Keyzer
Executive Vice President, Sales Representative
Toronto Downtown
 +1 416 643 3770

Alex Holiff
Vice President, Sales Representative
Toronto Downtown
 +1 416 620 2803

 +1 647 620 5373
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 181 Bay Street, Suite 1400 | 

Toronto, ON  M5J 2V1 | 

Canada 

 

 

Main: +1 416 620 2803 

Mobile: +1 647 620 5373 

 

 

     
 

 

December 6th, 2024 

 

TDB Restructuring Limited  

c/o Arif Dhanani 

11 King St W, Suite 700 

Toronto, Ontario 

M5H 4C7 

 

 

Marketing Report – 2849-2857 Islington Avenue, Toronto, Ontario (the “Property”) 

 

Dear Arif, 

You asked us for our views about selling the 5 lots comprising the Property on an individual basis and, in 

particular, our comments about whether each individual lot could be sold for $800,000 as suggested in an 

affidavit filed in opposition to the sale approval for the Property. 

Prior to being awarded the listing, Colliers Macaulay Nicolls Inc. (“Colliers”) underwrote the value of the Property 

from a variety of perspectives. We determined – and recommended to you through our listing proposal – that 

the Property be sold ‘en bloc’ as, in our view, the highest and best use for the Property was as a combined 

development site. We also have serious doubts that the individual lots would sell for $800,000 per lot for the 

reasons set out below. 

In reaching this conclusion, we determined at the time that fully-renovated semi-detached homes in the 

immediate area (semi-detached homes, making up most the Property’s current improvements) had sold 

recently between approximately $980,000 and $1,050,000. That said, the transactions we identified were not on 

Islington Avenue which is a busy street; accordingly, the comparable properties were superior to the subject 

Property. We also reviewed older detached houses, partially-renovated and renovated detached houses that 

sold in the immediate area (off Islington Avenue) and they all sold between $950,000 and $1,325,000. Finally, 

new and ‘0–5’ year old custom built semi-detached and detached homes in the area sold for between 

$1,545,000 and $1,840,000. 

Based on our conversations with you we understand that each of the houses on the Property is currently 

uninhabitable and would require a full-scale renovation just to make them livable. A full renovation would 

require significant capital expenditure which we understand  to be in the range of at least $250,000 per house, 

based on estimates that we understand you obtained from a construction contractor.  

On this basis, given the end sale prices of renovated homes in the area (i.e. between $950,000 - $1,325,000 for 

more desirable locations off Islington Avenue, with the high end being achievable for detached homes) , it is 

unlikely that a builder would incur the risk of acquiring the individual lots for $800,000 per lot when considering 

all of the hard and soft costs and other contingencies and risks inherent in undertaking a substantial 

renovation.  

In our view, a total demolition of the homes, as an alternative to renovation, would be even more costly and 

less attractive to a potential buyer. A builder would need to build large homes (of between 2,500 and 3,500 

square feet), with finished basements, in order to sell for between $1,545,000 and $1,840,000 (albeit there may 
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not even be a market for this along the subject stretch off Islington Avenue).  The cost of this construction alone 

would be approximately $600,000 - $750,000   (based on the lowest end of the cost range per square foot 

provided by Altus’ 2024 Canadian Cost Guide) plus soft costs. Accounting for an appropriate risk-adjusted profit 

margin, a builder would have to purchase each lot for significantly less than $800,000 per lot and would likely 

be a riskier less profitable venture than fully renovating the existing homes. 

While Colliers originally recommended in our listing proposal that the Property be marketed together as a 

whole, as we believed that the highest and best use of the Property was for a midrise project as-approved by 

the City of Toronto, we were still clear throughout our marketing materials, on MLS and on realtor.ca, that the 

Property consisted of four semi-detached homes and a detached home. We highlighted each lot’s separate 

legal descriptions and municipal addresses and provided photos that clearly delineated each lot. Any individual 

home buyer, or renovator/builder could always have come forward throughout our two public marketing 

campaigns if they saw value in any of the existing houses.  

Ultimately, all of the offers received were based on the Property as a whole and were likely submitted with the 

intent of further rezoning and/or building a midrise project because this, in our opinion, was (at the outset of 

the first sales process) and remains the highest and best use of the land, especially given the Property’s 

entitlements. 

We trust this report is satisfactory. If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact the 

undersigned. 

 Sincerely, 

 

 

 Steve Kezyer                  Alex Holiff 
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Arif Dhanani

From: Dale Denis <dale@dilitigation.com>
Sent: Thursday, December 5, 2024 5:07 PM
To: beatrice.loschiavo@paliareroland.com; wgreenspoon@garfinkle.com; 

dullmann@blaney.com; jwajs@stikeman.com; dmurdoch@stikeman.com; 
navis@stikeman.com; imarks@robapp.com; mgasch@robapp.com; rtaylor@cmblaw.ca; 
jwadden@tyrllp.com; ssherrington@tyrllp.com; jlee@cl-law.ca; 
ronald@davidzonlaw.com; Arif Dhanani; Bryan Tannenbaum; smosonyi@robapp.com; 
peter@himprolaw.com; rsparano@himprolaw.com; jmorley@LN.law; 
paul@starkmanlawyers.com; calvin@starkmanlawyers.com; asamat@blaney.com; 
jkulathungam@teplitskyllp.com; arjun.anand@infinitydevelopment.ca

Cc: Jeff.Larry@paliareroland.com; Douglas.Montgomery@paliareroland.com; 
ryan.shah@paliareroland.com; Paul Rooney

Subject: CAMERON STEPHENS  v. CONACHER KINGSTON et al. - CV-23-00701672-00CL - 
Affidavit of Simion Kronenfeld (Revision to paragraph 27 of Kronenfeld Affidavit)

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

 
Counsel,  
 
Please be advised that based on inspec�on of the five homes today, we will be advising the 
Court that, with respect to the last three sentences of paragraph 27 (quoted below), my client 
is now aware of some damage and the� in some of the homes, and as a result the cost 
es�mates set out in paragraph 27 are in aggregate higher 
 
The costs he would spend on the “largest home” is less than he es�mated, however, the 
expenditure for the other four homes (2851, 2853, 2855 and 2857 Islington 
Avenue ) is higher, with the end result that he now believes that the total costs referenced in 
paragraph 27 for all five homes should be amended to total $500,000, his evidence will be 
revised accordingly.  
 

“27. Further if between $10 to 15 thousand were spent on each of 2851, 2853, 2855 and 
2857 Islington 
Avenue then the sale price would be in the $950,000 to $1million sale price range for 
each of these proper�es. The property at 2849 Islington A venue is the largest property 
with the largest home. If $100,000 is spent fixing up this property, then I believe it 
would 
sell for approximately $1.2 million.” 

 
 

 External sender 
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Regards,  
 
Dale Denis 
Denis Litigation 
365 Bay Street, Suite 800 
Toronto, Ontario 
M5H 2V1 
Direct: (416) 479-3417 
Email:  dale@dilitigation.com 

This communication is solicitor/client privileged and contains confidential information intended 
only for the addressee(s). Any other distribution, copying or disclosure is strictly prohibited. If 
you have received this message in error, please notify us immediately and delete this message 
without reading or copying it. 
������ Before printing, please consider the environment. 
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COUNSEL SLIP/ ENDORSEMENT FORM 
 

COURT FILE NO.: CV-23-00701672-00CL  DATE: OCTOBER 9, 2024 

 

 

TITLE OF PROCEEDING:      CAMERON STEPHENS MORTGAGE CAPITAL LTD. v. CONACHER KINGSTON 
HOLDINGS INC. et al 

BEFORE:   JUSTICE W.D. BLACK   

 

PARTICIPANT INFORMATION 
 

For Plaintiff, Applicant, Moving Party, Crown: 

Name of Person Appearing Name of Party Contact Info 

Wendy Greenspoon-Soer 
Counsel 

Cameron Stephens Mortgage 
Capital Ltd. 

wgreenspoon@garfinkle.com 

 

For Defendant, Respondent, Responding Party, Defence: 

Name of Person Appearing Name of Party Contact Info 

Paul H. Starkman  
Calvin Zhang  
Counsel 

2478659 Ontario Ltd. paul@starkmanlawyers.com 
calvin@starkmanlawyers.com  

 

For Other, Self-Represented: 

Name of Person Appearing Name of Party Contact Info 

Dan Murdoch 
Nick Avis  
Counsel 

Ron Barbaro dmurdoch@stikeman.com  
navis@stikeman.com  

Samuel Mosonyi 
Counsel 

Elena Terpselas, in her 
Capacity as Estate Trustee of 
the Estate of Nicholas 
Kyriacopoulos 

smosonyi@robapp.com  
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Paul F. Rooney 
Dale Denis 
Counsel 

AJGL Group Inc. rooney@paulfrooneyprofcorp.com 
dale@dilitigation.com   

Ryan Taylor 
Counsel 

Issam A. Saad and  
2858087 Ontario Inc. 

rtaylor@cmblaw.ca  

Raffaele Sparano  
Counsel 

2468659 Ontario Inc. rsparano@himprolaw.com  

Arif Dhanani 
Bryan Tannenbaum  

TDB Restructuring Limited adhanani@tdbadvisory.ca  
btannenbaum@tdbadvisory.ca  

Douglas Montgomery 
Jeff Larry 
Counsel 

TDB Restructuring Limited douglas.montgomery@paliareroland.com 
jeff.larry@paliareroland.com 

 

ENDORSEMENT OF JUSTICE W.D. BLACK: 

[1] This was a motion brought by TDB Restructuring Limited in its capacity as the court-appointed receiver  
(the “Receiver”) of the lands and premises known municipally as 311 Conacher Drive, Kingston, Ontario 
(the “Kingston Property”) and 2849, 2851, 2853, 2855 and 2857 Islington Avenue, Toronto, Ontario 
(the “Islington Property” and together with the Kingston Property, the “Properties”) for, among other 
things, the approval of the sale of the Kingston Property. 

[2] More particularly, the Receiver seeks orders: 

(a) Approving the sale transaction (the “Transaction”) for the Kingston Property contemplated by 
the asset purchase agreement between the Receiver and 2349891 Ontario Inc. (the “Kingston 
Purchaser”) dated August 13, 2024 (the “APS”). 

(b) Following the Receiver’s delivery of the Receiver’s certificate (substantially in the form at 
Schedule A to the proposed Approval and Vesting Order (the “AVO”), transferring and vesting all 
of Conacher Kingston Holdings Inc. (the “Debtor’)’s right, title, and interest in and to the Kingston 
Property to Crestmount Developments (Kingston) Limited, free and clear of all liens, charges, 
security interests and encumbrances other than permitted encumbrances. 

(c) Approving the Proposed Interim Distribution (as defined in the materials).  

(d) Approving the Second Report of the Receiver dated September 26, 2024, and the Receiver’s 
activities described therein, as well as the fees and disbursements of the Receiver and its counsel 
as detailed in the Second Report and in two affidavits filed herein. 

(e) Sealing Confidential Appendices 1 and 2 to the Second Report; and 

(f) Approving the Receiver’s Statement of Receipts and Disbursements described in the Second 
Report. 

[3] With the exception of certain concerns discussed below, which in my view do not constitute reasons to 
prevent or delay the Transaction, the Transaction is essentially unopposed. In my view the process and 



3 
 

efforts undertaken by the Receiver easily meet the well-established criteria under Royal Bank v. Soundair 
Corp., 1991 CanLII 2727 (ONCA). 

[4] The evidence amply demonstrates that the Kingston Property was well-exposed to the market through, 
among other steps, distribution of promotional brochures to over 7000 potential purchasers and a public 
MLS listing for approximately seven weeks. An initial potential deal fell by the wayside, and the Receiver 
renewed its efforts and attracted (or confirmed) additional interest. 

[5] The Receiver received two offers for the Kingston Property by the Bid Deadline, in addition to the offer 
from the Kingston Purchaser giving rise to the Transaction. 

[6] The only condition for closing is the issuance of the AVO sought on this motion. 

[7] It is clear to me that the Receiver has made a robust effort to get the best price for the Kingston Property, 
and has not acted improvidently, and I see nothing to suggest that the process has been in any way 
unfair. 

[8] The only opposition to the Transaction came, first, from counsel to the putative second mortgagee on 
the Kingston Property, 2462686 Ontario Inc. (“286”) who raised, reasonably, a question as to whether a 
particular party who had previously expressed an interest in purchasing the Kingston Property had been 
approached. The Receiver provided a supplement to its Second Report confirming that indeed there had 
been communications with the agent for that party, from which no bid had resulted. 

[9] Appropriately, in light of receiving that information, counsel for 286 expressly withdrew the concern. 

[10] A second set of alleged concerns were voiced by counsel for the putative third mortgagee on the 
Kingston Property, 2478659 Ontario Ltd. (“247”). (I use the word “putative” with respect to mortgages 
of 246 and 247 inasmuch as, despite numerous requests from the Receiver, neither has yet provided 
documentation proving the validity of their respective charges. Both say they expect to do so, but for 
the moment at least some question has been raised about their mortgage security which remains to be 
resolved). 

[11] I regard the concerns raised by 247 as insubstantial and bordering on inappropriate. The concerns were 
in the nature of suggesting that, for example, although the Receiver reported that it had sent brochures 
to 7000 potential purchasers it had not in its materials identified the 7000 recipients or provided relevant 
details about them. Other similarly uncompelling concerns were raised. 247 also suggested that there 
was no evidence that the broker had a “for sale” sign in place on the Kingston Property; in response the 
Broker quickly confirmed that it had and offered photographic evidence (which I did not need to see to 
accept the Broker’s confirmation). In my view 247’s arguments in this vein were in the nature of 
“throwing everything against the wall in the hope that something would stick.”  As a more troubling part 
of this offensive, counsel for 247 even went so far as to allege that the Receiver had engaged in 
“double counting” in respect of its fees. 

[12] Any party asserting such allegations against an officer of the court has, in my view, a duty to provide 
precise and compelling evidence to substantiate them. The processes involved in insolvency matters 
before this court are important, and often subject to time constraints and other pressures, and this court 
relies heavily on the professionalism and integrity of the court-appointed professionals who assist the 
court in these proceedings.  
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[13] That is not to say that the Receiver (or any other court officer) is above scrutiny or reproach. However, 

such allegations must not be made lightly, and must be based in clear evidence. 

[14] In my view 247’s allegations are not supported by the evidence in this record and were and are not 
reasonable allegations to make. I see nothing to suggest that the receiver has conducted itself with 
anything less than its usual level of diligence and professionalism. 

[15] I am satisfied that the Transaction is for the benefit of the relevant stakeholders and, as noted, in 
compliance with the Soundair principles, and I approve it. I also agree with the need for the Confidential 
Appendices to be sealed (in accordance with Sherman Estate and Sierra Club) and so order. 

[16] The other issues raised before me related to issues about the proposed distribution of funds. 

[17] Cameron Stephens Mortgage Capital Ltd. (“Cameron Stephens”) is, undisputedly, the first mortgagee on 
both the Kingston Property – for which it provided first mortgage financing to Conacher Kingston 
Holdings Inc. (“Conacher Kingston”) – and on the Islington Property – for which it provided first mortgage 
financing to 5004591 Ontario Inc. (“500”, and together with Conacher Kingston, the “Debtors”). 

[18] The Receiver proposes, after payments of property taxes to the City of Kingston, payment of its fees and 
those of its counsel, payment of the Receiver’s borrowings relating to the Kingston Property, payment 
to the broker of it commissions and retaining a holdback for further fees and disbursements to pay to 
Cameron Stephens the remaining amount owed to it in respect of the indebtedness secured by its first 
mortgage on the Kingston Property (and the Receiver expects that Cameron Stephens indebtedness will 
be fully repaid from those net proceeds). 

[19] With respect to the second and third mortgagees, 246 and 247, as noted the Receiver remains to be 
satisfied that these parties have valid charges against the Kingston Property. 

[20] On the assumption that 246 and 247 will demonstrate that their respective security is valid and 
enforceable, the Receiver than proposed to make the following further distributions: 

(a) Payment to 246 of the lesser of: 

i. The amount owed to it in respect of its mortgage; or 

ii. The remaining proceeds from the sale of the Kingston Property; and 

(b) Payment to 247 of the lesser of: 

i. The amount owed to it in respect of the mortgage; or  

ii. The remaining proceeds from the sale of the Kingston Property. 

[21] In the ordinary course, this proposed approach to distribution appears unassailable. 

[22] However, 247 in particular, and 246, make arguments arising in relation to the Islington Property, and in 
particular the ownership of the Islington Property. That is, and the premise for the “marshalling” 
argument discussed below, Conacher Kingston and 500 were each owned by the late Nick Kyriacopoulos. 



5 
 
[23] I should note in passing that, in July of 2024 the Receiver brought a motion to approve the sale of the 

Islington Property. The motion was granted, but the purchaser ultimately failed to close the purchase, 
as a result of which the Islington Property was re-listed. 

[24] The order sought by the Receiver contemplates, after the distributions described above, the 
postponement of any further distributions to creditors pending the sale of the Islington Property. So, 
any excess proceeds from the sale of the Kingston Property will be held in trust by the Receiver until the 
Islington Property is sold and stakeholders have an opportunity to make submissions about the 
appropriate distribution of both any surplus funds from the Kingston Property and the net proceeds of 
sale of the Islington Property. 

[25] Notwithstanding this proposed approach, 247 has now brought a motion for a declaration that the 
“doctrine of marshalling be applied to require Cameron Stephens to realize on its security against the 
[Islington Property].”  247 also seeks an order requiring the Receiver to maintain the sale proceeds from 
the Kingston Property and the Islington Property in separate accounts, and that Cameron Stephens’ 
mortgage on the Islington Property not be discharged. 

[26] The Receiver opposes the relief sought by 247, noting that both Conacher Kingston and 500 have 
covenanted to Cameron Stephens to repay the full amount of their debt, as secured by the first 
mortgage, in each case that Cameron Stephens holds, on the respective properties. 

[27] The Receiver cites at least four reasons why the proceeds of sale of the Kingston Property ought not to 
be held back. 

[28] First, as noted, there is no dispute about the validity of Cameron Stephens’ charges over the properties, 
nor that Cameron Stephens is the first mortgagee in each case. The Receiver points to authority for the 
proposition that, even if the doctrine of marshalling is applicable, a fundamental principle of the doctrine 
is that “nothing will be done to interfere with the paramount right of the first mortgagee to pursue his 
remedy against either of the two estates.” (807933 Ontario Inc. v. Allison (Trustee of) (1995) 22 O.R. (3d) 
102 (Gen. Div.), appeal dismissed (1998) 38 O.R. (3d) 337 (C.A.). 

[29] As such, the Receiver persuasively argues, the right of a junior creditor to invoke the marshalling doctrine 
is subject to the important qualification that nothing will be done to interfere with the ability of the first 
mortgagee to pursue its remedy against either of the two estates. The first mortgagee does not become 
a trustee for the junior mortgagees (First Investors Corp. v. Veeradon Developments Ltd. (1988), ABCA 38 
(CanLII). In this case, the Receiver asserts, requiring Cameron Stephens to postpone realization on its 
security would in fact prejudice its “paramount” right to pursue its remedy against either of the two 
estates. 

[30] Second, the Receiver takes issue with 247’s reliance on Re Allison (on which the Receiver also relies). The 
Receiver points out that the motions judge in that case concluded that “the applicants are not entitled 
to invoke the doctrine of marshalling” on the basis that the applicant was not a secured creditor.”  
Moreover, as was pointed out by counsel for the owner of the Islington Property, who was present in 
court, the specific aspect of the motions judge’s decision in Re Allison on which 247 specifically relied in 
argument was expressly overturned by the Court of Appeal for Ontario. 

[31] The Receiver notes that, even if the doctrine of marshalling applies – in respect of which it takes no 
position – the result would still be to pay down Cameron Stephens’ debt in full from the Kingston 
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Property sale, and subsequently allow 246 and/or 247 to argue that they have the right to marshal into 
the Islington Property, which is precisely what the Receiver’s proposed approach will allow to happen. 

[32] The Receiver’s third point is that the indebtedness owed to Cameron Stephens and the other creditors 
continues to grow as a result of the accrual of interest, such that the sooner its debt is satisfied the more 
money will be available for the satisfaction of other debts. On the other hand, reducing the amount of 
proceeds available to satisfy the claims of multiple creditors is in none of the stakeholders’ interest. 

[33] Finally, the Receiver notes that creditors who assert claims, albeit unsecured, against proceeds from the 
Islington Property may similarly argue that Cameron Stephens’ indebtedness ought to be repaid out of 
the Kingston Property first. In fact, those very arguments were raised in July 2024 when the Receiver 
sought approval of the sale of the Toronto Property. 

[34] I am persuaded by these submissions. In my view the doctrine of marshalling, even if it applies, does not 
assist the second and third mortgagees (246 and 247) here. 

[35] The Receiver’s proposed approach to distribution in fact preserves whatever rights these parties 
(and others) may have to share in the proceeds of sale (of the two properties). 

[36] Moreover, it remains the case that 246 and 247 have yet to prove the validity of their respective charges 
(and counsel for the owner of the Islington Property maintains that they will be unable to do so). While 
I would not uphold the argument of 246 and 247 in the circumstances at hand in any event, I would be 
all the more loath to do so when the validity of their respective charges remains unproved. 

[37] As noted, and for these additional reasons, I am granting the orders sought by the Receiver, signed copies 
of which are attached, and dismissing the motions of 246 and 247. 

 

 

 _________________________________ 
 W.D. BLACK J. 

 

DATE:   OCTOBER 9, 2024 
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Arif Dhanani

From: Jeff.Larry@paliareroland.com
Sent: Thursday, December 5, 2024 9:01 PM
To: dale@dilitigation.com
Cc: Bryan Tannenbaum; Arif Dhanani; Douglas.Montgomery@paliareroland.com
Subject: RE: CAMERON STEPHENS  v. CONACHER KINGSTON et al. - CV-23-00701672-00CL - 

Affidavit of Simion Kronenfeld (Revision to paragraph 27 of Kronenfeld Affidavit)

Dale: 
 
The Receiver was advised by its contractor that while he was on site today, an individual who iden�fied himself as “Sal” 
a�ended at the property and claimed to have authoriza�on from the Receiver to be on site (which was not true). The 
contractor a�empted to contact the Receiver to confirm but could not reach the Receiver. The contractor then asked Sal 
to leave but Sal refused. 
 
Please confirm who Sal is and his rela�onship to Mr. Kronenfeld. 
 
From: Dale Denis <dale@dilitigation.com>  
Sent: Thursday, December 5, 2024 7:49 PM 
To: Jeff Larry <Jeff.Larry@paliareroland.com>; Beatrice Loschiavo <beatrice.loschiavo@paliareroland.com>; 
wgreenspoon@garfinkle.com; dullmann@blaney.com; jwajs@stikeman.com; dmurdoch@stikeman.com; 
navis@stikeman.com; imarks@robapp.com; mgasch@robapp.com; rtaylor@cmblaw.ca; jwadden@tyrllp.com; 
ssherrington@tyrllp.com; jlee@cl-law.ca; ronald@davidzonlaw.com; adhanani@tdbadvisory.ca; 
btannenbaum@tdbadvisory.ca; smosonyi@robapp.com; peter@himprolaw.com; rsparano@himprolaw.com; 
jmorley@LN.law; paul@starkmanlawyers.com; calvin@starkmanlawyers.com; asamat@blaney.com; 
jkulathungam@teplitskyllp.com; arjun.anand@infinitydevelopment.ca 
Cc: Douglas Montgomery <Douglas.Montgomery@paliareroland.com>; Ryan Shah <ryan.shah@paliareroland.com>; 
rooney@paulfrooneyprofcorp.com 
Subject: CAMERON STEPHENS v. CONACHER KINGSTON et al. - CV-23-00701672-00CL - Affidavit of Simion Kronenfeld 
(Revision to paragraph 27 of Kronenfeld Affidavit) 
 
Jeff: We have confir med with the person who conducted the in spec�on that (foll owing the dire c�on of an individual wh o was on site w ho he assumed was a re presenta �ve of the Receiver) he replac ed ea ch b oard whic h he had unscrewe d to o btain  
 

Jeff: 
 
We have confirmed with the person who conducted the inspec�on that (following the 
direc�on of an individual who was on site who he assumed was a representa�ve of the 
Receiver) he replaced each board which he had unscrewed to obtain access and that the 
condi�on of the property, the boarding of the doors he accessed, was the same when he le� 
as when he arrived. He is a contractor who knows how to properly unscrew a board and screw 
it back on securely, which we are advised he did. 
 
Regards, 
 
Dale Denis 
Denis Litigation 

 External sender 
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Direct: (416) 479-3417 
Email: dale@dilitigation.com 

This communication is solicitor/client privileged and contains confidential information intended only for the addressee(s). Any other 
distribution, copying or disclosure is strictly prohibited. If you have received this message in error, please notify us immediately and 
delete this message without reading or copying it. 
������ Before printing, please consider the environment. 

 
From: Jeff.Larry@paliareroland.com <Jeff.Larry@paliareroland.com>  
Sent: December 5, 2024 7:20 PM 
To: Dale Denis <dale@dilitigation.com>; beatrice.loschiavo@paliareroland.com; wgreenspoon@garfinkle.com; 
dullmann@blaney.com; jwajs@stikeman.com; dmurdoch@stikeman.com; navis@stikeman.com; imarks@robapp.com; 
mgasch@robapp.com; rtaylor@cmblaw.ca; jwadden@tyrllp.com; ssherrington@tyrllp.com; jlee@cl-law.ca; 
ronald@davidzonlaw.com; adhanani@tdbadvisory.ca; btannenbaum@tdbadvisory.ca; smosonyi@robapp.com; 
peter@himprolaw.com; rsparano@himprolaw.com; jmorley@LN.law; paul@starkmanlawyers.com; 
calvin@starkmanlawyers.com; asamat@blaney.com; jkulathungam@teplitskyllp.com; 
arjun.anand@infinitydevelopment.ca 
Cc: Douglas.Montgomery@paliareroland.com; ryan.shah@paliareroland.com; rooney@paulfrooneyprofcorp.com 
Subject: RE: CAMERON STEPHENS v. CONACHER KINGSTON et al. - CV-23-00701672-00CL - Affidavit of Simion 
Kronenfeld (Revision to paragraph 27 of Kronenfeld Affidavit) 
 
Dale: 
 
Can you confirm that the inspec�on of the property that you refer to in your email below did not include any physical 
a�endance on the property nor the removal of the boards that block the entry to the dilapidated dwellings on each of 
the Islington proper�es. 
 
We trust this is the case since no one sought the Receiver’s consent to a�end on site. However, if the boards have been 
removed, the Receiver needs to know immediately as entry to the dilapidated dwellings is a safety concern. 
 
Please confirm. 
 
 
 
From: Dale Denis <dale@dilitigation.com>  
Sent: Thursday, December 5, 2024 5:07 PM 
To: Beatrice Loschiavo <beatrice.loschiavo@paliareroland.com>; wgreenspoon@garfinkle.com; dullmann@blaney.com; 
jwajs@stikeman.com; dmurdoch@stikeman.com; navis@stikeman.com; imarks@robapp.com; mgasch@robapp.com; 
rtaylor@cmblaw.ca; jwadden@tyrllp.com; ssherrington@tyrllp.com; jlee@cl-law.ca; ronald@davidzonlaw.com; 
adhanani@tdbadvisory.ca; btannenbaum@tdbadvisory.ca; smosonyi@robapp.com; peter@himprolaw.com; 
rsparano@himprolaw.com; jmorley@LN.law; paul@starkmanlawyers.com; calvin@starkmanlawyers.com; 
asamat@blaney.com; jkulathungam@teplitskyllp.com; arjun.anand@infinitydevelopment.ca 
Cc: Jeff Larry <Jeff.Larry@paliareroland.com>; Douglas Montgomery <Douglas.Montgomery@paliareroland.com>; Ryan 
Shah <ryan.shah@paliareroland.com>; Paul Rooney <rooney@paulfrooneyprofcorp.com> 
Subject: CAMERON STEPHENS v. CONACHER KINGSTON et al. - CV-23-00701672-00CL - Affidavit of Simion Kronenfeld 
(Revision to paragraph 27 of Kronenfeld Affidavit) 
 
Counsel, Pleas e be advise d that base d on inspec�on of the five homes today, we will be advising the Court that, with respect to the last three senten ces o f paragraph 27 (quote d below ), my client is now aware of s ome da mage and the � in so me  
 

  
Counsel,  
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Please be advised that based on inspec�on of the five homes today, we will be advising the 
Court that, with respect to the last three sentences of paragraph 27 (quoted below), my client 
is now aware of some damage and the� in some of the homes, and as a result the cost 
es�mates set out in paragraph 27 are in aggregate higher 
  
The costs he would spend on the “largest home” is less than he es�mated, however, the 
expenditure for the other four homes (2851, 2853, 2855 and 2857 Islington 
Avenue ) is higher, with the end result that he now believes that the total costs referenced in 
paragraph 27 for all five homes should be amended to total $500,000, his evidence will be 
revised accordingly.  
  

“27. Further if between $10 to 15 thousand were spent on each of 2851, 2853, 2855 and 
2857 Islington 
Avenue then the sale price would be in the $950,000 to $1million sale price range for 
each of these proper�es. The property at 2849 Islington A venue is the largest property 
with the largest home. If $100,000 is spent fixing up this property, then I believe it 
would 
sell for approximately $1.2 million.” 

  
  
Regards,  
  
Dale Denis 
Denis Litigation 
365 Bay Street, Suite 800 
Toronto, Ontario 
M5H 2V1 
Direct: (416) 479-3417 
Email:  dale@dilitigation.com 

This communication is solicitor/client privileged and contains confidential information intended 
only for the addressee(s). Any other distribution, copying or disclosure is strictly prohibited. If 
you have received this message in error, please notify us immediately and delete this message 
without reading or copying it. 
������ Before printing, please consider the environment. 

  
 

The information contained in this e-mail message may be privileged, confidential and protected from disclosure. If you are not the intended 
recipient, any use, disclosure, dissemination, distribution or copying of any portion of this message or any attachment is strictly prohibited. 
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